LEE & MAN HOLDING LIMITED
BEXEBERERLA"

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REEFSTMA L HRAA])

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 3

* For identification purposes only

EREE




Annual Report 2009 F #

Contents
B &

CORPORATE INFORMATION NRER
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHE
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BIRER RO
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT hEELRE
PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EELaREREST
DIRECTORS' REPORT EEeRE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B AZ B RS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAEDHEEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A SRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY meREmEFETR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FelRenex
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e S ImER

FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E




Lee & Man Holding Limited 3£ 3 & B A IR 2 7]

Corporate Information

~EEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEE

Ms. WAI Siu Kee (Chairman) wmhmat (£E)

Ms. POON Lai Ming ERIAR L

Mr. LEE Man Yan FXBEE

Mr. KUNG Phong BE KL

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP* F RS BBS KA FAh 1+
Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng* (reappointed on 8 April 2009) TBRRBSRE* (BAREER2009F 478 H)
Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony* FRIOCGR S A+

* Independent non-executive director * BUHNTEE
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Ms. WONG Yuet Ming T RALL
REGISTERED OFFICE EEM M EE

Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
PRINCIPAL OFFICE HmER

8th Floor, Liven House BEBNEEE

61-63 King Yip Street WA 61-635%

Kwun Tong MRE 8

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS EBERBIT

Hang Seng Bank, Hong Kong BARIT - BE

Chiyu Bank, Hong Kong ERIRIT - BB

Bank of China, PRC FREYERTT - AP
AUDITORS % BEm

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =E) o FAER T GETANTT

Certified Public Accountants HEDFTE



Annual Report 2009 F #

Corporate Information

~EEH

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR FERBEBRERLE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited

Butterfield House Butterfield House
68 Fort Street 68 Fort Street
P.O. Box 705 P.O. Box 705
Grand Cayman Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR FEERMBFELIE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

SEMEREREARAF]

26/F Tesbury Centre BE
28 Queen's Road East EFKEBEHE28%
Hong Kong TIEED L2618
WEBSITE MLk

http://www.leeman.com.hk

http://www.leeman.com.hk

03



04

Lee & Man Holding Limited 32 XX £ & A& R 2 &

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,403.4 million, increased by 31.9% over last year ; and a
net profit of HK$233.8 million, representing a substantial increase of
186.7% over last year. The handbag business contributed a net profit of
HK$103 million, with the second phase production line fully operated in
the middle of the year, our chemical business has migrated from capital
investment stage into a profit generating stage and finally contributed a
huge profit of HK$130 million to the Group.

As the European and US market remained sluggish, the revenue
from handbag business inevitably dropped by 19.3% over last year.
Nevertheless, the Group was able to maintain a stable profit through
effective cost control, enhancing product design, developing more styles
of products and developing new clients as the main direction.

For the chemical business, the Group captured the opportunities arising
from a strong recovery in the PRC domestic market, and the business
successfully, as expected, generated a remarkable profit to the Group.
This has laid a sound foundation for the expansion of chemical business
in the future.

PROSPECTS

The current handbag market is still weak and together with a severe
shortage of labour in China, the handbag business will be full of
challenges in the coming year. Nevertheless, the Group will strive to
design various styles of products to meet market needs, develop new
clients and reinforce internal controls, so as to maintain a stable profit.

Chemical business will continue to focus on the PRC domestic market.
In the coming year, the Group will devote much efforts in optimizing
internal operating system and cost control, with the aim of generating
higher profit.

The management will, as it has always been, execute step-by-step
the established market policies and strategies for business development
and be fully devoted to generate reasonable returns for the
shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

We thank all our customers, suppliers and all members of our
management team and staff for their loyalty, dedication, and

contribution during the period under review.
On behalf of the Board
Wai Siu Kee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 April 2010

i

AANERREFEAEEF - fERN  &F
PEEEERERETERBE—F2EH
FHEFR - RRHE -

REREFE
FrE
BLH

&% 20104 A7H

05



Lee & Man Holding Limited 32 XX £ & A& R 2 &

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWKR DN
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RESULTS OF OPERATION

Turnover and net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2009 was HK$1,403.4 million and
HK$233.8 million, representing an increase of 31.9% and 186.7%, as
compared to HK$1,064 million and HK$82 million, respectively, for last
year. The basic eamnings per share for the year was HK28.3 cents when
compared with HK9.9 cents for last year.

The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the increase in the
Group's sales of chemical products due to the result of 2nd phase
chemical production line fully operated in the middle of the year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2009, the total equity of the Group was HK$925
million (2008: HK$718 million), the Group's current assets were
HK$361 million (2008: HK$329 million) and current liabilities were
HK$525 million (2008: HK$572 million). As at 31 December 2009,
the Group had bank balances of HK$71 million which was placed as
short term deposits with major leading banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows while part of the capital expenditure of the chemical business
was financed with credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong and the PRC. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had
outstanding bank borrowings of HK$372 million (2008: HK$427
million). Due to the completion of chemical production facilities and
decrease in capital expenditure, the Group's net debt-to-equity ratio
(total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents over shareholders'
equity) has significantly decreased from 0.51 as at 31 December 2008
to 0.33 as at 31 December 20009.

As per our company policy, the Group only provided corporate
guarantee instead of assets as collaterals for all bank borrowings.
Hence, the Group chose to finance part of its chemical business's
expenditure in the form of one year short term revolving loans. Since
these loans could be utilized continuously, with steady and strong
cash flows generated from operating activities and also with unutilized
bank facilities of HK$465 million, the Group’s financial position is
strong enough to meet its capital commitments and working capital
requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBEEBNWRIOW

HUMAN RESOURCES

At 31 December 2009, the Group had a workforce of more than
5,000 people. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees, and provides them with proper training and competitive
compensation and incentives. The staffs are remunerated based on
their work performance, professional experience and prevailing market
situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses based
on individual merits.

The Company has a share option scheme under which the executive
directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries may be
granted options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. Up to
31 December 2009 no option was granted under the scheme.
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Corporate Governance Report

i

% ERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. During the year under review, the
Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, except where stated and explained below.

The Group has an Executive Chairman. No individual has been
appointed as a chief executive officer. The Executive Chairman with
the assistance of the Group's senior management team oversees and
manages the Group's business. Other functions normally undertaken
by a chief executive officer of a company are delegated to members
of the Group's senior management team. This structure deviates from
the code provision of Code that requires the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer to be separate and not performed by
the same individual. The Board has considered this matter carefully
and decided not to adopt the provision. The Board believes that
the current management structure has been effective in facilitating
the operation and development of the Group and its business for a
considerable period of time and that the necessary checks and balances
consistent with sound corporate governance practices are in place.
Accordingly, the Board does not consider it necessary to change the
current management structure. However, the Board will review the
management structure from time to time to ensure it continues to meet
these objectives.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2004. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2009. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role
The Board comprises:

Executive Directors:

Ms. WAI Siu Kee (Chairman)
Ms. POON Lai Ming

Mr. LEE Man Yan

Mr. KUNG Phong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng (reappointed on 8 April 2009)
Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony

The Board comprises of four executive directors (one of whom is the
Chairman) and three independent non-executive directors. The three
independent non-executive directors represent more than one-third of
the Board. In addition, three of the independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate legal, professional accounting qualifications and
financial management expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group's business operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by
the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive director an annual confirmation or confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the
Company's corporate communications.
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The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors.
Notice of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular
board meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion
in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers
in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors
within reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board
meetings are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all
directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of director EEHA

Ms. WAI Siu Kee whmut

Ms. POON Lai Ming BB

Mr. LEE Man Yan TNREE

Mr. KUNG Phong B

Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng aERE

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FECRITLE BBS X F 41

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony TR LA

FREHAZEE $’§ BEEELE
BREESERIZHE  -HALBIEINE
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B EEEGARRE BB AR E
8 -

ROBEFEAN CERERE  REFHRE
ﬁ/R#?‘JZZD—F .

Number of board

meetings attended Attendance rate
HEEETSRRH HER
8/8 100%
5/8 63%
6/8 75%
6/8 75%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and its current members
include:

Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng (Chairman)
Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP
Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in legal,
business and accounting on the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were
adopted in 2001 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company's website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectively of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2009.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of member MEEE

Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng MeaELE

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FESR e BBS X FAE
Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony FRURSESE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and the current
members include:

Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng (Chairman)
Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP
Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on
the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration of directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that
no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
were adopted in 2005 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy
of which is posted on the Company's website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine
the policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management and all members
have attended in the meeting.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the auditors of the Company
only provided audit services to the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets. The
Board has delegated to executive management the implementation of
the system of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within
an established framework.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2009, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on
the going concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about
the Group's performance to shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders,
additional information is also available to shareholders on the website
of the Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company
gives at least 21 days' notice. The Chairman and Directors and
external auditors are available to answer questions on the Company's
businesses at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual directors.
In addition, procedures for demanding a poll are included in the circular
to shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WAI Siu Kee, aged 65, is the chairman of the Company who
joined the Group since its establishment in 1976. Ms. Wai has more
than 45 years of experience in the manufacturing industry. She is
responsible for the development of corporate strategies, corporate
planning and overall management of the Group and in particular the
marketing and development of the business of the Group.

Ms. POON Lai Ming, aged 54, joined the Group in 1976. She has
over 32 years of experience in the handbag industry. She is responsible
for the overall management and the operation of the Group's handbag
manufacturing activities in the PRC.

Mr. LEE Man Yan, aged 32, is an executive director of the Group
and general manager of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd. He is in
charge of the corporate and strategic planning of the chemical business
segment, and is responsible for the procurement, staff recruitment,
public relations and management operations of the chemical business.
He graduated from the University of British Columbia, Canada with a
bachelor's degree in commerce. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Lee
is a son of Ms. Wai Siu Kee, the Group's chairman.

Mr. KUNG Phong, aged 38, is an executive director and deputy
general manager of the Group. He joined the Group in 2008 and
has over 14 years of experience in business development as well as
extensive knowledge in sales and marketing in both PRC and Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the management and development of the
handbag business of the Group. Mr. Kung is the spouse of Ms. Lee Man
Ching, the director of sales of the Group and a son-in-law of Ms. Wai Siu
Kee, the Group's chairman.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS, JP, aged 60. He holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, also an associate of the Institution of Business Agents, a member
of the Land Institute (London), an associate of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators and a fellow of The Institute of Administrative Accounting. He
is engaged in the business of property valuation and property auction
and has over 29 years of related experience.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. HENG Kwoo Seng, aged 62, is the managing partner of Morison
Heng, Chartered Accountants and Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has worked with a number
of companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
either in the capacity of company secretary or as an independent non-
executive director.

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony, aged 67, has been a practicing lawyer
in Hong Kong since 1968 and has also been admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales. He is currently a consultant at Messrs. Hastings &
Co., Solicitors and Notaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Handbag Business

Ms. LEE Man Ching, aged 35, is the director of sales of the Group. She
joined the Group in 2007 and has over 12 years of experience in sales
and marketing. She is responsible for the Group’s handbag business
by leading the sales force in serving major OEM clients. Ms. Lee is the
daughter of Ms. Wai Siu Kee, the Group's chairman and the spouse of
Mr. Kung Phong, the executive director of the Group.

Mr. NG Yu Hung, aged 55, is the senior manager of the Group. He
joined the Group in 1977. He has over 34 years of experience in the
handbag industry. He is responsible for the marketing and development
of the Group's handbag business in the European market.

Mr. CHIU Shun King, aged 47, is the production manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in 1984 and has over 25 years of
experience in the handbag industry. He is responsible for production
planning and overall production management of the Group's factory in
Gao Bu Industrial Park.

Ms. WONG Yuet Ming, aged 45, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Group. She joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 22 years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. She
holds a master's degree in business administration from the University
of Surrey, United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is responsible for the
supervision and management of the Group's financial matters.
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Handbag Business (Continued)

Ms. TSUI Chin Wai, Jennifer, aged 45, is the sales manager of
the Group. She joined the Group in 1990. She graduated from the
State University of New York with a master's degree in business
administration. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of the
Group's handbag business in the European market.

Ms. TAI Miu Fong, aged 45, is the senior manager of the group.
She joined the Group in 2003 and has over 15 years of experience
in marketing and development. She is responsible for the sales and
marketing of the Group's handbag business in the United States and
European market.

Mr. CHAN Kam Bun, aged 61 is the business manager of the Group.
He joined the Group in 1982 and has over 44 years of experience
in the handbag business. He is responsible for the handbag business
development of the Group.

Chemical Business

Mr YANG Zuo Ning, aged 48, is the Deputy General Manager of
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd. He joined the Group in 2006. He is
a national acclaimed senior engineer and has 28 years of production
experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for the production
supervision, corporate strategic planning and general management of
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.

Mr LAM Hiu Fung, aged 39, is the deputy financial controller of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2005 and has 17 years of experience
in financial management. He holds a bachelor's degree in Accountancy
from City University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in International
Business from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is responsible for the supervision on the financial
matters, tax issues and general management of the chemical business.

Mr. HUI Jun, Dan, aged 55, is the sales director of the Group's
chemical business. He joined the Group in 2005 and has over 29 years
experience in sales, marketing and business development in overseas
and PRC enterprises. He is responsible for developing the Company's
sales strategies, exploring potential markets and logistics management
of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) SREEE|)
Chemical Business (Continued) e T (&)

Dr. TSE Man Kin, aged 38, is the Business Development Manager WXRIEL 385 IEHEREXIETIARA
of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd. He joined the Group in 2008 B ERLIE - R2008 FMAREHE -
and has 16 years of experience in chemical research and research HAEEHEBI6FLEBRMRERAEEEL
management. He holds a Ph. D in Chemistry from the Chinese & @ #FABESTXAS(LEFTEM N AE
University of Hong Kong and is a member of the American Chemical Bir22eXE - REERKEITERK
Society. He is responsible for the research and development of the HEETIE -

chemical business.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
28.

An interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share amounting to HK$24,750,000
in total was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.07 per share to the shareholders on the register of members on
24 May 2010, amounting to HK$57,750,000 in total, and the retention
of the remaining profit for the year of HK$151,323,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group's property, plant and equipment were revalued as of
31 December 2009. The revaluation resulted in (i) a surplus over
book values by HK$10,704,000 which has been credited to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve,
and (i) a deficit over book values by HK$15,000 which has been
debited directly to profit or loss.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of approximately HK$2 16,653,000 for the purpose of expanding
its business, mostly relating to its chemical product division. Details of
these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Furthermore, at 31 December 2009, the Group had paid deposits
of approximately HK$87,444,000 to acquire property, plant and
equipment for its chemical production plant in Jiangsu, the People’s
Republic of China. Details of the capital commitments are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Ms. Poon Lai Ming

Mr. Lee Man Yan

Mr. Kung Phong

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP
Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng (reappointed on 8 April 2009)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Lee Man Yan and Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each of the other independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Wai Siu Kee and Ms. Poon Lai Ming have each entered into a service
agreement with the Company on 1 September 2008 for a period of 3
years. Unless and until terminated by either party by three months' prior
written notice.

Mr. Lee Man Yan has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years commencing 16 August
2004, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either party by three months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Kung Phong has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years commencing 20 August
2008, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either party by three months' prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of directors and
chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have
been notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") of
the Results Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

@ REATBRGZHAE

KRB FHO.1 BT EiEik

Percentage of
the issued share

Number of issued capital of the
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held Company
e 81T EARARE BT
EEpA 4 ZEREE RABDL
Lee Man Yan Held by controlled 618,750,000 75%
corporation (note)
£ X PEEERE (B1at)

note: These shares are held by Fortune Star Tradings Limited (“Fortune
Star").

(b) Long positions in shares of the associated corporations of

the Company
Name of
associated
Name of Director Capacity company
BEENR g% EEEEEE
Lee Man Yan Beneficial owner Fortune Star
Eg) EXL YN

note: As Fortune Star owns more than 50% of the Company, Fortune
Star is an associated corporation of the Company under the SFO.
The entire issued share capital of Fortune Star is owned by Mr. Lee
Man Yan, a Director, as to 45% and Mr. Lee Wan Keung as to the
remaining 55%. Ms. Wai Siu Kee is a director of Fortune Star.

Other than disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief executive,
or any of their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, which had to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Ltd. ([Fortune Star)) 354 o

(b) RALQTHEBEZEZROEFRE

Percentage
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45 (note) 45%
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

A share option scheme as detailed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements was adopted by the Company on 14 December
2001, under which the directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their associates may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. No options were granted by the Company under the scheme
since its adoption.

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2009, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of shareholders Capacity

BREHE 51

Beneficial owner

BEamBEAA

Fortune Star

DJE Investment S.A. Investment manager (note)

WELE (Baz)

Note: The long position of 43,406,000 shares were held by DJE Investment S.A.
which was controlled by DJE Kapital AG, which in turn was controlled by
Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements which are also the
discloseable connected transaction pursuant to Listing Rules. In the
opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these transactions
entered into by the Group were:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was
no available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable
so far as the shareholders of the Company were concerned; and

(i) either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or
(b) where there were no such agreements, on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties.

(iv)  within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need

to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers comprised approximately 319% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were
approximately 8% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were approximately 40% of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the
five largest customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 20009.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wai Siu Kee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 April 2010
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE & MAN HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee & Man
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 28 to 103, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BEXEEARATDRR
(REIEHSEMA L2 BRLE])

IZER TE B EH N FE28EEF 103512
XEEBRAR(( BRI REMNBAR
(I5Er BEE])2HFEEMBHE  tE
B zT B IER 2009F 12 A31 A2 ira
HRER BEEZALFEZHFA2ER
mi o A RRERRRGEReRER
AR EBZEEBURME RE MM iR -

BERRERAABRBEB GG RM
ZEEMEREEREBRRRDZ T
HREmSI N EBMA T2 FE5E M
Wk - RFRMTEER - B RRITER
B MEEMAFH2IE5A M BRR AR
PIERESHE - DAfRAR A R TSR I S ARFF 3k
HRMEM EAHRBRAL - BENERE
BZEEHER  URERHBARBERMN S8
BEZ g A -

AZBENTTZ B ERBRIBAIT 2 B

HZFEAVBREAEHER - UREES
WhalaR - EREBEBIREE - MM
R o AZBE T ARG Z AB AT
A EM AL BB RAEEMEE - A2 EED
TEREEEGTMASBEMNTEEE
ABETTEZTE - ZFLEERRIFIETE
RARBLMEILATES - NEIERTIF
HEMBREREL N FHEERNEAHRRK
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B &% AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 April 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE FExT FAT
Revenue WA 6 1,403,428 1,064,077
Cost of sales SHEE R A (983,753) (825,855)
Gross profit EF 419,675 238,222
Other income EAUgA 7,409 15,542
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO KA (60,497) (45,418)
General and administrative expenses THREMA (108,484) (107,660)
Finance costs BB 8 (13,792) (9,086)
Profit before taxation FRA R A 244,311 91,600
Income tax expense FriSBisz it 9 (10,488) (10,038)
Profit for the year FRHEN 10 233,823 81,562
Other comprehensive income Hih2mHE U
Surplus arising on revaluation of property, HEEWE - BE KEEM
plant and equipment B AR 10,704 11,024
(Recognition) reversal of deferred tax liability ~ EEEWE - = L&A
arising on revaluation of property, plant and EEZIEEHIEAEN (BER)
equipment PSAEIE (426) 540
Effect of change in tax rate MEEH B - 160
Exchange differences arising form translation ~ FE#RE mMELRER =58 35 23,336
Other comprehensive income for the year FREM 2 EREE 10,313 35,060
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEY LA 244,136 116,622

Earnings per share (HK cents) BRREF GBI 12 283 9.9



At 31 December 2009 72009412 A31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Deposits paid for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Defined benefit assets

Current assets

Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Restricted bank balances

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Derivative financial instruments
Amounts due to related companies
Taxation payable

Bank borrowings — due within 1 year

Net current liabilities
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

Bank borrowings — due after 1 year
Other long term payables

Deferred taxation

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Annual Report 2009 F #k

FRBEE

ENEEFIR

REME

BIVEE

BEWZE - WEM&E
PASENEI

FENZERE

REBEE

E3

BNEEHIR
FEWE 5 I Bt 5R0R
ITESRTA
BRHIRITIER
RITHEBIIRE

RBAEE
B 5 R AR
ITESRTA

FE SR A R FOR
FERBLR

RITER—1 FARIH

RBEEFE
HEERRBDEE

FRBRE
RITRR—1 FI1REIH
HitbRHIEN TR
EFERA

BEEFE
BARK
[EEN

R

REnARRR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 28 to 103 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 April

2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wai Siu Kee
OB
Chairman
FE

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FHET FHET
15 1,147,156 984,725
16 55,766 49,438
17 22,408 21,785
18 8,480 5,292
12,841 72,636
33 4,250 3,852
1,250,901 1,137,728
19 108,375 126,120
16 1,210 1,036
20 178,387 138,137
21 704 —
22 1,705 -
22 70,638 63,469
361,019 328,762
23 293,991 263,218
21 - 508
24 8,911 4,131
3,631 1,487
25 218,598 302,303
525,131 571,647

(164,112) (242,885)
1,086,789 894,843
25 153,850 124,800
26 1,676 45,631
27 6,008 6,168
161,534 176,599
925,255 718,244
28 82,500 82,500
842,755 635,744
925,255 718,244

F28BEFE 103 BTH 2 TG HREE 2010
FAR7THEEESBBNMEETE - AT
NEBREERE

Lee Man Yan
=
Director

EF
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At 1 January 2008

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive
income for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Realised on depreciation of
property, plant and equipment
Realised on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividends recognised
as distribution

At 31 December 2008

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive
income for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Realised on depreciation of
property, plant and equipment
Realised on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Deferred tax liabilty reversed on
realisation of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax liabilty reversed on

realisation of disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Dividends recognised as distribution

At 31 December 2009

Lee & Man Holding Limited 32 3 & B A R 2 7]

H2008F1A1H

ERihl
EREt
2ENE

ERNZA
haes

g - BERRE
7Ees
teng R

ERRDIR
RS

1200812 A31 A

ERih|
EREt
EEL

EREA
bgartd

ER T
ZITEER
HENE B
RREER
R BER
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

Share
capital

Bx
HK$000
ThL

82,500

82,500

82,500

Share
premium

ktaf
HK$'000
Thr

20307

20,307

Asset
revaluation
reserve
BB
Bfhfkfs
HK$'000
TAL

63,339

11,724

11,724

(5073)

(142)

69,848

10278

10278

(5,59)

(387)

538

48

14727

Translation
reserve

EffE
HK§'000
ThT

11,678

23336

23336

35014

35

35

35,049

Special Accumulated

reserve

il
HK$'000
TAR
(note)
(Fizz)

(67,990)

(67,990)

profits
ZEER

HK$000
TR

533,038

81,562

81,562

5073
142

(41,250)
5785565

233,823

233,823

5598

387

(538)

(48)
(37,125)

780,662

Total
At

HK$000
TR

642,872

81,562

35,060

116,622

(41250)
718244

233,823

10313

244,136

(37,125)

925,255
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

notes:

The special reserve of the Group represents:

(@

(®)

the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company and the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in December
2001; and

the special reserve of a subsidiary, Lee & Man Development Company
Limited (“Lee & Man Development”), which represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by Lee &
Man Development and the nominal amount of the share capital of
subsidiaries acquired by it pursuant to a group organisation in 1993.

X
AEEZ BRI

() ARFEEBE2001F12 A 2 B EAMIE
ZHBLRE 2 RAHMESEARRREEITR
REEZZRE &

(i)  FIE2AF]Lee & Man Development Company
Limited ([E23XE R |) 2 5Fhl#E T HRE
—IEM 1993 F 2 S E S HMMUEME AR
ZRAHEEBNEREBETRAREZ
Z=5 o
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Interest expenses
Write-down of inventories
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible asset
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Change in fair value of investment properties

Deficit arising on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment

Fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments

Interest income

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in defined benefit assets
Increase in trade and other payables

Decrease in derivative financial instruments

Increase in amounts due
to related companies

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Interest paid

Profits Tax paid for other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
Increase in prepaid lease payments
(Increase) decrease in restricted
bank balances
Purchase of intangible assets
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

meE R
B AR F
TR

M - BB MREZITE

MBS
FEREER
FAfHE S R

BV EE#H
FEWE S IR FORERR

HEWE - BE RREEE

REMERIRBZE
EfhmE M
PrEEE 2 B8
PTHESRMTAAAREE

FBUA
Rt EESEFA

REXBHReRE
FEm (4500)

U E 5 I L Mo FRIRIE
FRERREEE N
JERTE 5 R B FRIRIE AN
TTESRMIAZRD
FESTRAE A RIFRIRIG AN

REXBAERSE
ENEEREHR
ERNFE

B EMAIEER SR

REXBREREFE

REEY

BEWE BB NM&E

BEWE BEMREZEHE

TBNEEFIE N
BRHIRITIFR (B 00) B

BERVEE
EUFB
HEWME - BFE RRIBASFOR

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEFEELSEE

2009
HK$'000
TEx

244,311

66,351
13,792
1,386
1,066
800

369

227
125

15

(704)
(291)

327,447
16,359
(41,042)

(398)
49,216
(508)

4,780

355,854
(8,874)
(13,792)
(56)

333,132

(135,987)

(87,444)
(7,501)

(1,705)

(921)
291
157

(233,110)

2008
HK$'000
TAET

91,600

35,484
9,086
6,503
1,036

384

1,355

158
872

508
(679)

146,307
(26,308)
(3,886)
(397)
48,974

2,644

167,334
(12,620)
(9,086)
(35)

145,593

(279,306)

(72,636)

4,737

679

122

(346,404)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank borrowings
Dividends paid

Bank borrowings raised

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

BMEES

ERIRTTE

ERRE

FTEERITEL

BEEE (FriE) MR

RERERREEE
1BnFE

REDZRERERBETHA

EREBH X

RELZRERERFLIEE

2009
HK$°000
TR

(304,619)
(37,125)
248,784

(92,960)

7,062

63,469

107

70,638

2008
HK$'000

TATT

(81,956)
(41,250)
341,303

218,097

17,286

46,858

(675)

63,469
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
ultimate holding company is Fortune Star Tradings Ltd. (“Fortune
Star"), a company which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US dollars"), the consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”) as the Company is listed in
Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

In light of the fact that the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$164 million as at 31
December 2009, in preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group including its
existing resources, available banking facilities (note 25) and future
operating cash flows, and are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

RRARRIBEFSEHSREDE(KEERT)
FENERHEHSTMALA—FRE
HEBARAR - EROHNEBRS
SAHERAG ([HAA]) £ - Hix
145 RR A B A Fortune Star Tradings Ltd.
([Fortune Star]) » —EIRRBAER AT
SEHME AL 2 A ] o NRRFHITIHEE
REZEEMBNARER AFER |F
BREE -

ARARIZNEEER REE - ANART]
REE LT - RitsraMISHRRIAET
IR e

RAB A/ —EREER AR - X2
BRRz EZEBHCMTEST

ENAEFEMN 2009 12 A31 BZ 7S
BEARERESEEN1.64E8T - 1K
REUREVISHREE - ARRESBC R
DERAEERR ZRBES - WARE
BEBBEAR R ZBTEEEE
(Mi5E25) RARKEEEBAB2HE
o AEEEE R EEES YA
BRE &R - Bt - SREMTBHRE
ERBEEENEEMRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

RAFEE  AEECEAATHEES
AEIAE ([BEEFEIAS ) RAFT
B RAREETAR - (ER] MR (3R] R
RIERI BB BRELER]]) -

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS
39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

HK(FRIC) — Int 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of Financial Statements
Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures

about Financial Instruments
Operating Segments
Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate
Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation
Transfers of Assets from Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008, except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5 that
is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80
of HKAS 39

BACHENE 15
(200745437)
BRGHERIE 235
(200748437)
BAGIIERIE 3R
RE1%:(85T)
BANBREER
F1RREAH
#3275 (f537)
BANBREEN
F25 (B3]
BB RS 2ER
EEHZH))
BAABREERES
& (B RS
REZEE)-RE
FORREALH
RS ACH)
B4 (BRyHHERE
LEE)-REE 3%
&6 (ERMBRERE
ZEE)-REL 5%
a6 (ERaBRERE
ZE8)-REE) 6sr*
B4 (BReHE2
REE)-2EE 8%
Bsa RS ER (153])

BEMBRSEN (B])

e e

{EERA

EERT AR AR

ELMEL

Wﬁ% A - KR
Bl N

E@JM

BRI NG

TRIANREE

FiHERERE

HheaER
faTE
fEFagaE

FA2008 F RN EBH K
R - R
2009F7 A1 A5k
R RS BRI
HE B R R
E5FAETRRIN
2009 ERIHBRIET
BAHENE 9%
F80RMAEH
BaEERSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced a number of terminology
changes (including revised titles for the consolidated financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the
consolidated financial statements.

The application of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation
of the Group's reportable segments (see note 7), nor has the
adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of measurement of
segment profit or loss.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded disclosures
in accordance with the transitional provision set out in the
amendments.

The adoption of the other new and revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

ABEFTERIFE 15%(2007 F&1ER]) 3l
AZHARES (BREHGREMHRE
RREELIER]) - REBEHRE MR
REJN MBI ANEE o

FERBEMTSHREERE 8 RIEG
ARRIEEHDBATEHE D (RH
i7) - MR E B TR E RIS 857
ERE D BRAN KB RN EE
* o

BREMGIREERE 7R EFTREA
BRNAAREENT B TANEAR
B ENHERTE - AEEWRARH
FZEERTEEE R EAR A
REFTEZ IR LEER o

AT RS BB RS A
AR EHBERH N SR MT
HRLMEATE -

AEBIWKIZZEATYIEBMHETER
AR RAEETEER] ~ (BR] ANgka2
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008'

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

Classification of Right Issues*

Eligible Hedged ltems!

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters®

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®
Business Combinations!

Financial Instruments’
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

BRAVEHREEA(B])  HEAMEREEL
B5RMEIIERR
2008 FRIHMES
BRI
f—55"

EAVEREEA(B])  R2009FERMHER
ISR

BACHERE 4% (BIE]) BBALHES
BACHERE 27 (BER]) AHMERIERE'
BRCHENEDS () SR E
BACHEREN(5F]) AEREHER!
BABRSEN HIRA R
F15 (85D BHIEGS
BANBRSEN BRNE AR BRE
F15 (83T EABTR I BE
HILBET
BRE#HGS
EAUBREER EFZNRETMIN
F25 (B3] RiAEENFR S
EAUBREER ERAH
F35 (EET)
BRUBREENEE  SRIA
B (ERaERE ROERERE
2EZEE) TffzEe
—2BE 145 (1857)
B (ERIHRE DIERTHEAL
2EZEE) FRLEE
-REEITH
B4 (BRHHS R T AIE
REZEE) SRaRE

—2EF19%

M2009F 7 A 1 Bk Z ERIGHFEE
HARAERK -

200957 A 1B&2010F1A1H
(FEA) Sz BB FE R A R

ZAEET ©
R20109F 1 A1 Bek 2 BFIRHFE
HRRRIAE K -

M2010F2 A 1 B ZERIGHFE
HAR AR o
R20104F7 A1 B2 BRBMEE
HARRTAERK -
R20114F1 A1 Bek 2 BFIBHNFEE
BRRRIAE K -
R2013F 1 A 1 B ZERIGHFE
HAR AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in the Group's ownership
interest in a subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those used by other members of the Group.
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including land and building
held for use in production or supply of goods or senvices or for
administrative purposes but other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and any subsequent accumulated impairment loss.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an
asset is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent depreciation
of the revalued assets, the attributable revaluation reserve is
transferred to accumulated profits on a straight-line basis over
the useful life of the assets, and, upon disposal and retirement,
the remaining revaluation surplus attributable to that asset is
transferred to accumulated profits.

Freehold land is not amortised.

Depreciation and amortisation is provided to write off the valuation
of buildings and leasehold improvements over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided to write off the valuation of other
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the reducing balance method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the
item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property
carried at fair value

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are carried at cost and amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit
or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it incurred.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as revaluation increase
under that other standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting
period. Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the
greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligations and
the fair value of plan assets at the end of the previous reporting
period are amortised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the amended benefits become vested.

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the present fair value of plan assets as adjusted
for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses, and as reduced by the
defined benefit obligation. Any asset resulting from this calculation
is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost,
plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company's net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve).
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale for which the commencement date for capitalisation
is on or after 1 January 2009, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets dassified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, restricted bank balances
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period ranged O to 90 days and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

THMEE (K

EREENRIE (E)
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@ - TIRIEESR AP ETA

SIZB N AGT B EREEMS © W
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Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities at FVTPL, of which the interest
expense is included in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities mainly include trade and
other payables, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowings and other long term payables. They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives that are not designated and effective as hedging
instruments are classified as held for trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

SHE W ()
i
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Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and recognise a
collateralised borrowing for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience, expectations
of the future and other information. The key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that can significantly
affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements within the next financial year
are disclosed below.
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Impairment loss on trade receivables B E 5 R 2 REER

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables REBEWE 5 5H 2 B E 2 fT
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and DARTIE M ~ BRER DT R E R EHIET &
aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment. A A o FHHZERWGIE 2 RIS EIREE
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the NEEETAEHE - BESEFPZHE
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current B2 - MAEERPYISINHBE
creditworthiness of each customer. If the financial conditions of the 1t + BISSETZRae S » BIZBIR B I NE
Group's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment o METIRMEFTRERESRE AR
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may REFRFEBEIRAGTEIRE o 112009
be required. Impairment is made based on the estimation of F12A31 8 - BEESFIEZ REE
the future cash flow discounted at the original effective rate (FOBRIBEES BT ) 4 153,943,000 7870
to calculate the present value. As at 31 December 2009, the (2008 : #7125,156,000787T) °

carrying value of trade receivables (net of impairment loss) and
bills receivables was approximately HK$153,943,000 (2008:
approximately HK$125,156,000).

Write-down of inventories FEREEE

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each TEBEREERSERSEHRENTFE
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow- BE - WHIERAITHESBAREEZ
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for B NOB B amE TR - BET2
use in operation. Allowance was made by reference to the latest Rz s BERZEDHNTFE
market value for those inventories identified. Where the net SHR%EME - )R2009F 12 A318 - 78
realisable value is less than the cost, a material write down may Z BRTEE (B 2EME 12 ) 49 108,375,000
arise. As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of inventories 771 (2008 : 49126,120,000/87L) °

(net of allowances) was approximately HK$108,375,000 (2008:
approximately HK$126,120,000).

Income taxes FRSH

As at 31 December 2009, deferred tax asset in relation to unused BRARREFNZRATATER - R
tax losses of approximately HK$36,469,000 (2008: approximately 2009F 12 A31H ' BAEARE
HK$40,172,000) was not recognised in the consolidated 518 2 IR I8 & FE 436,469,000/ 7T
statement of financial position due to the unpredictability of future (2008 : #940,172,00078 7T ) I A 7R
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly EE AR KPP HER o RIEHRIEE
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary EZBRIZERNRELT A BRI
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the FSk S 2R AT S R 2 FE AR A B = BRI
expectation for future profit streams changes, a recognition of TE o WEA 2 KRB R T % TE Ef
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit @A RIERIR B ER e g TABE R
or loss for the period in which such a recognition takes place. B - Maz ARG R A

Bl 2 R B e R A RERR,
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Manufacture and sales of HiliE M S
— handbags —F&
— chemical products —(EIER

(@)

Operating segments

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
with effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, the Chairman, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance.
In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14, Segment
Reporting) required an entity to identify two sets of
segments (business and geographical) using a risks
and returns approach. In the past, the Group's primary
reporting format was business segments. The application
of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the
Group's reportable segments as compared with the primary
reportable segments determined in accordance with HKAS
14, nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of
measurement of segment profit or loss.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are Handbags and Chemical products.

Principal activities are as follows:

— Manufacture and sales of
handbags

— Manufacture and sales of
chloromethane products and
caustic soda

Handbags

Chemical products

Information regarding the above segments is reported
below. Amounts reported for the prior year have been
restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.

@

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
727,555 901,240
675,873 162,837
1,403,428 1,064,077

EE DI

AEEE B 2009F 1 A1 HERE
MBS ISREERE 8 SR [ 4L
P¥E] - HAEVISREZELFE 85
ESRUEBERMEBZEREE -
EEEF  EHOBIEERSER
M2 ERB EATE EHNE
BB TEBFANANBREES
BRRESENEE - R B
AREARASTERE 145 [ 5
RS | BIESRERRARER &
ERA%  ERMAD (XS
Mil@) mMEREN [MEZEEA
BREMABABREHH | E
EBD RSN BRI - RIK
EFSERE 1458 0 NEEH
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(@)

Operating segments (continued)

Segment revenues and results

For the year ended 31
December 2009

REVENUE — external sales
Segment profit

Other income
Central administration costs

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Segment revenues and results

For the year ended 31
December 2008

REVENUE — external sales
Segment profit (loss)

Other income
Central administration costs
Finance costs

Profit before tax

HZE2009 £
12A31BLLEE

WA —SIERSHE

RRITIRER
BERA

BRI A A

H = 2008 FF
12A31BIEFE
WA — SR sEE
HELHEF (EE)

HAUA
hARITIHRER

BR AR A A

() &I ()

DEBAR A
Chemical
Handbags products
FR tIER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT THET
727,555 675,873
119,866 139,399
DERBAR A&
Chemical
Handbags products
FR tIER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
901,240 162,837
114,770 (12,512)

Total
RE
HK$'000
FHET

1,403,428
259,265

3
(1,165)
(13,792)

244,311

55

Total
mE
HK$'000
FET

1,064,077

102,258

(1,572)
(9,086)

91,600
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(@)

Operating segments (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 4. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned
by (loss from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the Chairman for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable segment which is received by
the Chairman for resource allocation and performance
assessment:

Segment assets

Handbags FL
Chemical products {ETE®R
Total segment assets DEBEEHRR
Unallocated Hih&E
Consolidated assets meEE
Segment liabilities

Handbags F&
Chemical products {ETER
Total segment liabilities DEb B ELARR

\
7l

=
)

o

mht

Unallocated

3
o
\r

TH

Consolidated liabilities

A

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments other

than assets of the Company.

—  all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than liabilities of the Company.

@

REDE (&)

A 2D B SRR EAEE
SETBRERMIE 48R - 2 #BEF
BEDBEEEN (B1R) - T8
R RITBARA RBRE R A7
e - W ThAASEEE 2|7
% ETERD B REHE D H
=H e

ITHEERER
AT RAKENEER A BIZA

EHRD BT > WL TIRAEE
TREMIITE - NETERD

g Ao B3R ¢
SHEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
406,884 414,837
1,204,673 1,051,395
1,611,557 1,466,232
363 258
1,611,920 1,466,490
PESEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
266,201 307,414
419,903 440,044
686,104 747,458
561 788
686,665 748,246

BN BN BRE RO

BRHEH

— BRARAEESN MHE
EHHREA2HHH



Annual Report 2009 F #k

For the year ended 31 December 2009 &;Z£20094 12 A31H IEFE

(@)

Operating segments (continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or

loss, or segment assets:

2009

Addition to non-current assets (note)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-down (reversal of write-down)
of inventories
Gain on fair value changes on
derivative financial instruments

FRBEERNE ()
ZIE

JENTE B R

FEMIR R EY R (EES 18

HEME - BE R
RiBER
FERERE (BEE)

FHESRIANLE
SETEs

() &I ()

Hitbn 3REH
FEAFTE D EREE
A
Chemical
Handbags products
FR {EIEmM
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET
3,603 224,529
15,383 50,968
490 576
- 800
255 114
66 161
5,252 (3.866)
704 -

Total
wmE
HK$'000
FHExT
228,132
66,351
1,066
800

369

227

1,386

704

57
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(@)

Operating segments (continued)

2008

Addition to non-current assets (note)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-down of inventories
Loss on fair value changes on
derivative financial instruments

FERBEERE ()

W% - BER&HEZ
e

TE NS R IE

B EESH

FEMIR TR YR (E R 18

HEME - BE R
RiBER

FERIERE

TTHESRMIALNR

ERNEFER

note: Non-current assets excluded defined benefit assets.

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its

major products and services:

Handbags
Chemical products

FH
(L ITES

() RESEH A

Chemical
Handbags products Total
FR tIER )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FTHET
5,041 348,316 353,357
14,493 20,991 35,484
490 546 1,036
= 384 384
1,355 = 1,355
158 = 158
2,637 3,866 6,503
508 = 508

it IERBEEL T RIEFEN S

FEREMRBRBHRA

REE T 2ERIRBWADHT
LI

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
727,555 901,240
675,873 162,837
1,403,428 1,064,077
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(b) Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the
People's Republic of China (“PRC"), the United States of
America (“USA") and Thailand.

The Group's revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

Hong Kong 0

PRC H

USA E3E

Canada JIIEYN

The Netherlands i

Italy BAM

The United Kingdom HE
Germany =

Other European countries HtBUNEIR
South American countries ZESEER

Other Asian countries

note: Non-current assets excluded defined benefit assets.

HipEMEIR

(b)

& E

AEBEBHHNES - PEA
RAEMB((HE]) - ZEREE -

AEBRAINBER Z WA RIR
BEMNMREID IR EE
BT

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets (note)

RENBEFHEA RBEE (fB3)
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER AT TR TAL
13,423 26,856 1,779 1,961
671,789 163,921 1,222,403 1,110,020
367,139 459,602 61 110
26,557 28061 - -
87,332 82,299 - -
57,283 49,891 - -
43,076 120,433 - -
15,726 33,259 - -
45,364 39,860 - -
21,328 28574 - -
48,411 31,321 22,408 21,785
1,403,428 1064077 1,246,651 1,133,876

et JERBEEL T EEAEME

959
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(b) Geographical information (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the

Group's total sales are as follows:

Customer A (i)

(i)  Revenue from handbags

=5

A ()

(i) The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of

the Group's total sales.

60

Interest on:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable
within five years

I~

X
RAFREEEEZ
RITIER
ERRAFREEEREZ

RITER

(b)

HEEFR (F)

FEFEFHNEHR

ERFWABBASEREER
10% ZA°F

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
- (ii) 152,785
0 FHKA
(i) REEHEBAREEBIHER10%
HUFEFELA. .
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
12,544 9,086
1,248 =

13,792 9,086
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The charge comprises: X HBE
Current tax: REEHA
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEFTISH

Other jurisdictions Income Tax

Underprovision in prior years: TEEIBEIHIE
Hong Kong 5

Other jurisdictions Hth A AR
Deferred tax (note 27): RIERIE (M FE27)
Current year REE

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, one of
the Group's PRC subsidiaries is exempted from PRC income tax
for two years starting from 2008, followed by a 50% reduction for
the next three years. These tax holidays and concessions expire
in 2012. No provision for PRC income tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as this PRC subsidiary was
exempted from PRC income tax during the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in relevant jurisdictions.

HAth AR St

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
11,015 9,906
59 67
11,074 9,973
- 55

- 10

- 65

(586) -
10,488 10,038

MR2008F 6 A26H AV LG R
#2008 F U A GBI E 2 - QA F
B EH175%7 5 = 165% @ &
2008/2009 R FAABARL o BBFT1SHETD
RABRZFE 2 T ER IR FE 16.5%
REHE -

RIEFECEMESREREEMSER
EEHAED - ARB AR ZHER
20084 1 A1 B#£A25% °

RIBPBIER AR KD - REEEF
— R 2 MY B A 7] 8 2008 4 2
HEMFRBRDEMSH - MBEE=4F
AIZERFEFER - ILHEESRFEH
BHE20124 |F - BRULHTE AR
RIFEMBN - WAFEREHRETIE
TEtRH B EATSE o

B B AR < BIRTIZ A B AL A R
ZARBRMETH ©
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The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FATIAR  BAR A 2 E W R AT

62

taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income TADRA S BRI T ¢
as follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before taxation FRA A ) 244,311 91,600
Tax at the domestic income tax A HFR SR &
rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) 16.5% 2 #4718 (2008: 16.5%) 40,311 15,114
Tax effect of expenses not deductible B TE JE AR i RN AT
in determining taxable profit MBIz BB E 2,209 2,699
Tax effect of income not taxable in EEEREUR MR A
determining taxable profit R A 2 T2 (71) (130)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEB BT E 630 2,308
Tax effect of profit not subject to tax % 50:50 Js FJ tE I E2E
under 50:50 arrangement (note) 2R e (i) (9,100) (10,103)
Effect of tax exemption granted to HEMBARRES S
a PRC subsidiary -7 (21,756) -
Underprovision of profits tax in TFEEEBRAMAERERE
Hong Kong and other jurisdictions DR PRIST - 65
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries H i R ERE R
operating in other jurisdictions eSS -7 91 167
Utilisation of tax losses previously BB RMER
not recognised Z TIE R (1,240) (82)
Reversal of deferred tax liabilities R AET IE A [B] 4% (586) =
Income tax expense for the year FRAEB T 10,488 10,038
note: According to the 50:50 onshore/offshore arrangement between MiEE : ARBAKBEREBHBHE L2 50 :

the Group and the Inland Revenue Department in Hong Kong,
certain profit of the Group is not subject to tax.

Details of deferred taxation at the end of the reporting period and
during the year are set out in note 27.

S03EEERE BEERHE - AEBMzET
BMBEEH

BEIEFRIER RS AR RN ERZ FiEH
RHIEE27 -



Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 13)

Other staff costs

Retirement benefit schemes
contributions (excluding directors)

Total staff costs

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses (including write-down
of inventories of HK$ 1,386,000
(2008: HK$6,503,000))
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables (included
in selling and distribution costs)
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Change in fair value of investment properties

Loss on fair value changes on
derivative financial instruments

Deficit arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Net exchange loss

Research and development cost
recognised as expenses

and after crediting:

Interest income

Net exchange gain

Gain on fair value changes on
derivative financial instruments
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F R A2 HIRR

EEHM (HiEE13)

H A B R

RREAMETBIHK
(BFEIN

B TR AR

T A E B
B
IZEAD NS
BHERAX LHFEERA
(RIEFERERE
138.6 BT
(2008 : 6503 &E7T))
M - BEREEIITE

MR TR EY R (B R 18
(BHREHE kD HKAR)

HEWE - BE M&REEE

BEMEOD R EE
PrESRMITAM AL EEE

EfbYE - BERRBEE
ZIER

U 5B 1R

ERER A H TR

WEEFFA

A EWA
BEE 3% U
ITESRTA

DA ENESKE

2009
HK$°000
TR

3,227
176,731

2,114
182,072

1,066
800
1,190

983,753

66,351

369

227
125

15
1,098

629

291

704

2008
HK$'000
TAT

2,850
187,169

2,047
192,066

1,036
384
1,079

825,855

35,484

1,355

872

508

679
5,623
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

Dividends recognised as FREHERDIRZRE
distributions during the year:

Final dividend of HK$0.015 per share HZE2008F 12 A31 HIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2008 REARR B &M% 1.5 784

Interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share HZE2009F 12 A1 HIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009 AR S AR 3.0 L

Final dividend of HK$0.025 per share HZE2007F 12 A31BIEEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2007 REARR SRR 2.5 AL

Interim dividend of HK$0.025 per share HZE2008F 12 A31 BIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2008 HEARR B AR 2.5 784

A final dividend of HK$0.07 (2008: HK$0.015) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2009 has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in annual
general meeting.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of HK$233,823,000 (2008: HK$81,562,000)
and 825,000,000 (2008: 825,000,000) shares in issue during
the year.

2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET TR
12,375 =
24,750 =
- 20,625

- 20,625
37,125 41,250

EFQCERIREHE2009F 12 H
3NHEIEFEZREAREER70E
(2008 : 1.57(l) « MHEARFRRNBEF
KRG ERE -

BEREXRBHNDEFE ARG M
233,823,000,/87C(2008 : 81,562,000/%
T BR LASE R E 251 TR% 17 825,000,0008%
(2008 : 825,000,000 f%) Mat&E o
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The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2008: 7)

directors were as follows:

Year ended 31.12.2009

Executive directors
Wai Siu Kee

Poon Lai Ming
Lee Man Yan
Kung Phong

Independent non-
executive directors
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP
Heng Kwoo Seng
(reappointed on 8.4.2009)
\Wong Kai Tung, Tony

HZ2009F 12831 BLEEE

HiTEE
BO%
AR
38

BUFHTEE

Fa
i}

(BRETR 200954 A8AH)
TEE

Fees
ik
HK$'000
TER

80

60
80

220

BTSN T 762(2008 : 7R EFZ

MEanT -
Other emoluments
Hit#e

Retirement Performance
Salaries benefit related
and other schemes incentive
benefits contributions  payments
ER RINER E:35)
HitrEH TR ke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
1,170 5 =
696 12 58
502 12 =
540 12 -
2,908 41 58

Total
&t
HK$'000
TER

1175
766
514
552

80

60
80

3207
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Year ended 31.12.2008

Executive directors
Wai Siu Kee
Poon Lai Ming
Lee Man Yan
Kung Phong
(appointed on 20.8.2008)

Independent non-
executive directors
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP
Heng Kwoo Seng
(resigned on 30.4.2008 and
reappointed on 8.4.2009)
Wong Kai Tung, Tony

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

BZ2008F 12 431 HILEE

HITEF
9%
BB
¢

(ZFF 20088 520 H)

BUIHHTEE

Fis
i)
(BHER 2008 F4 A30A K
BREAR200954A88)
THE

Fees
ik
HK$'000
THT

80

27
80

187

note: The performance related incentive payments were determined with

regards to the Group's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics. No directors waived any emoluments
in the year ended 31 December 2009.

Salaries
and other
benefits
ER
HitEH
HK$'000
FHET

1,170
696
502

2,565

Other emoluments
Hit#€

Retirement Performance
benefit related
schemes incentive
contributions  payments
RIKEF E:35)
HE 50 HEES
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
12 =
12 58
12 =
4 —_
40 58

Total
&t
HK$'000
TAR

1,182
766
514

201

80

27
80

2,850

it RIABERES HRARARERE -
EARE MBS ST MEE © &
20094 12 A 31 B IIFFEIWEBIR

MEEAIME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2008: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 13 above. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2008: three) individuals were as follows:

e L EAER
RRBHET B

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

REEEES

Discretionary bonus payments

The emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

#H, % 1,000,0008 7T

1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000 37T

EAREES N EEF M2 ALTH - 2182
2 (2008 : 2f) ANARIES - EHME
B ExCpdEE 13 o mEAR3AL(2008 : 3
i) P A LT 2SI T -

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2,040 2,706
36 24

339 288
2,415 3,018

e FTIEE

2009 2008
Number of Number of
employees employees

EEHE REEE
3 2

- 1

6/
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VALUATION/COST

At 1 January 2008

Currency realignment

Addtions

Disposals

Transfer

Transferred to
Investment property

Adjustment arising

on revaluation

At 31 December 2008
Currency realignment
Addtions

Disposals

Transfer

Adjustment arising

on revaluation
At 31 December 2009

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2008
Provided for the year

Eliminated on revaluation

At 31 December 2008
Provided for the year

Eliminated on revaluation
At 31 December 2009

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

Lee & Man Holding Limited 32 3¢ & B A R 2 7]

/B
20085118
L

B8

i

#8
AHERENE

REBMELZHE

20085124318
e

B

i

a8
REGELIEE

R2009%12A318

il
1200851718
KR
BfhHHE

12008124318
AERRR
EfsHHE

20095124318

]
#2009% 124318

#20085 124318

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

Land and
buildings
THREF
HK$000
TR

110817
294

30,803

(23203)

4967

123,658

65

17996

(5622)

136,097

8592
(8592)

10,869

(10:869)

136,097

123,658

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
G- %8
e

HK$ 000
TR

8320
7
3683
(12

(2,088)
9975
1210

(73)

@17)

8998

2498
(2498)

2,065

(2,065)

8998

9975

Leasehold
improvements
BE

HK$ 000
TR

8,605

9339

835
(835)

938

(938)

9,339

9,008

Motor
vehicles
i
HK§ 000
Tn

3,803
86
513

(1,018)

3,384

(491)

3,381

993
(993)

907

(907)

3,381

3,384

Plant and
machinery
BER#E

HK$'000
TR

340301
26016
47991

(268)

187562

(26724)

574878
1,187
91,852
@17)
3317

(47446)

963,571

22566
(22,566)

51,572

(51572)

963,571

574878

Construction
in progress
HRIR
HK$000
ThL

174462
12311
295414

(218365)

263822
567
122,694

(361313)

25,770

25770

263,822

Total
EEl
HK§ 000
TR

646308
38779
347601

(280)

(23223)

(24:460)

984725
1824
216653
(384)

(55662)

1,147,156

35,484
(35484)

66,351

(66351)

1,147,156

984,725
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a reducing balance method at the following rates per annum
except for the buildings and leasehold improvements which are
depreciated on a straight-line at the rate of 5% per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Plant and machinery (handbags segment) 20%

Plant and machinery (chemical products segment) 5% — 10%

The carrying values of the Group's property interests comprises
buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

The Group's property, plant and equipment were revalued as
of 31 December 2009 by Sallmanns (Far East) Limited, an
independent firm of professional property, plant and machinery
valuers, on the fair market value in continued use basis.

The net surplus of HK$10,689,000 (2008: HK$11,024,000)
arising on the above revaluation has been dealt with as follows:

() asurplus of HK$10,704,000 (2008: HK$11,024,000) has
been credited to the asset revaluation reserve; and

(i)  a deficit of HK$15,000 (2008: nil) has been dealt with in
the profit or loss.

If the above property, plant and equipment had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation at the
following amounts:

BRETMEEMRREZNETIAER
ERFERSNITEIN - LY - BB

R B T ARIERAGRRIE T X
e

B HBRRE 20%
E 25%
BB RS (FROEB)  20%
BE RE ((ETHE) 5-10%

AREEYEEENIRMERETBEIRA
FET T EAEL I ERREY

REBE W - BB RFZE - 722009
F12A3 BEHBIEEYE BEX
WEsHERD - FAPICGER)BRAR @ 1%
B FEREE FUARNATESER -

B _E it Sk ZE LAY F & 52 10,689,000
7570 (2008 1 11,024,000 7T) & & 12
ABRAAR -

® 107040007 JT(2008 : 11,024,000
BT BB BABESHRFEE
X

(i) 15000%7T E4L (2008 : #&)E
SEABHRERA -

T Lt 2 5 ~ s MR I EETTE
it S ERESL AR E R ENA
THBERGRAMERKRED

69
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

Furniture,
fixtures and
landand  equipment
buildings - #£8

THREF E]

HK§000 HK$000

Fin T

Cost A 146,208 25043
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHTEREH

and amortisation (56,418) (19513)

Net book value FmFE
At 31 December 2009 200912831 H 89,790 5530
At 31 December 2008 R2008%12A31R 78290 6,619

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in
the PRC under medium-term lease.

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DITEWMAT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Current asset MBNEE

Leasehold
improvements
BE

HK$000
TR

16,038

(10967)

5071

5383

Motor
vehicles
i
HK§'000
Thn

8,645

(6879)

1,766

2,198

Plant and
machinery
BER#E

HK$'000
TR

1,047 441

(101,650)

945,791

559,680

Construction
in progress
HRIR
HK§000
i

25770

25770

263,822

2009
HK$'000
THET

55,766
1,210

56,976

Total
EEl
HK§ 000
TR

1,269,145

(195427)

1,073,718

915,992

AEEz BNEEFERETERENZ
REIHE T o

2008
HK$'000
TAT

49,438
1,036

50,474
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

FAIR VALUE L]

Transfer from property, plant and 200851 A 1H
equipment and at 1 January 2008 "M - R REHEA

Currency realignment ER AR

Change in fair value NRIEEE

At 31 December 2008 2008412 A31H

Currency realignment TER AR

Change in fair value NRIEEE

At 31 December 2009 2009512 A31H

The investment properties situated in Thailand were revalued as
of 18 December 2009 by Thai Property Appraisal Lynn Philips
Co., Ltd.,, an independent firm of professional property valuer,
on the basis of open market value in existing use. A deficit of
HK$125,000 (2008: HK$872,000) has been dealt with in the
profit or loss. In the opinion of the directors, there is no material
fluctuation on the valuation of the investment properties between
18 December 2009 and 31 December 2009.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

— freehold land in Thailand NARRBI KA ERE LT

— buildings on freehold land in Thailand ~ fTAZREI KA ERE L i F 2 IEF

HK$'000
TAT

23,223
(566)
(872)

21,785
748
(125)

22,408

AEBURFTEZREMEEZR
2009F 12R 18R BB BEEY X
f&{&RT * Thai Property Appraisal Lynn
Philips Co., Ltd.3Z E IR B ABE 2 A
FmsEEZELEEM 1250008 7T
(2008 : 872,000 7T) BB E AT AU
KA o AEEESR AN 20094 12 H
18 HZE20094F 12 A 31 HEIR » & &
YEMBELEERNEE o

L2522 REMEIREERRE :

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
9,422 9,001
12,986 12,784

22,408 21,785

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

Technical
knowhow
Bl AN
HK$'000
FHET

THE GROUP REEH
COST BN
At 1 January 2008 20081 H1H -
Addition RE 5,756
Currency realignment B (86)
At 31 December 2008 72008 12 A31H 5,670
Addition RE 3,977
Currency realignment E 12
At 31 December 2009 2009 12 A31H 9,659
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2008 200841 A 1H -
Provided for the year AN E R 384
Currency realignment TE R SR (6)
At 31 December 2008 R 20084 12 A31H 378
Provided for the year N E R 800
Currency realignment BN R 1
At 31 December 2009 R 20094 12 A31 H 1,179
CARRYING VALUE tREE
At 31 December 2009 R 20094 12 A31 A 8,480
At 31 December 2008 R 2008F 12 A31H 5,292
The technical knowhow was acquired from third parties. It is BRARMABIERE =T - HN+5F
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of ZAEEHERFRA - IRE AR o

ten years.
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Raw materials and consumables R R R
Work in progress i

Finished goods B

Trade receivables FEUE Bk

Less: allowance for doubtful debts EARAEE

Bills receivables FEUE B
Prepayment and deposits BRRRET®

Other receivables H ol sRIA

Total trade and other receivables JEURE 5 I H A FRIE

The Group generally allows its trade customers an average credit
period ranged from O to 90 days.

At 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of the bills
receivables pledged as security for the bills discounted with
recourse, as disclosed in note 25, was HK$44,274,000 (2008:
HK$47,028,000).

Included in the balance are trade and bills receivables of
HK$153,943,000 (2008: HK$125,156,000). The aged analysis
of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

2009
HK$°000
FTEx
58,153

38,410
11,812

108,375

2009
HK$'000
FExT
84,129

(360)

83,769
70,174

153,943
14,922
9,522

178,387

2008
HK$'000
FHT
52,867
41,372
31,881

126,120

2008
HK$'000
TAT

70,662
(1,355)

69,307
55,849

125,156
11,151
1,830

138,137

AEE—RETESEP 2BRRHFH

N O

A20094 12 831 H » 44,274,000787T
(2008 : 47,028,000/ 7T ) 7 FEW =1
FRYEMT A B R M =R B3R 2 98 (B

£¥25) °

FEWE 5 R H A IBBIEEKE FH K
T8 & ZE 5 #9153,943,0007% 7T (2008 :
125,156,000/7T) * BB SFIERE
BRIRE AR 2 BRE AT -

/3
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

Less than 30 days DLR30K
31 — 60 days 31 260K
61 — 90 days 61 290K
Over 90 days 90 KAk

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
101,216 77,696
38,313 32,162
12,970 11,278
1,444 4,020
153,943 125,156

The following amounts of trade receivables, bills receivables and
other receivables are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

Euro BRZE
Renminbi (“RMB") AR
HK dollars BIT

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer's credit quality by investigating its historical
credit record and then defines its credit limit. During the year, the
Group has provided allowance for doubtful debts of HK$369,000
(2008: HK$1,355,000) for certain receivables aged over 90 days.
The Group generally makes provision against debts which aged
over 90 days because historical experience is such that receivables
that aged over 90 days are generally not recoverable. However,
included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$10,378,000 (2008:
HK$20,255,000) which were past due at the reporting date but
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the amounts are still
recoverable as there are continuing subsequent settlement. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AT RIE S5 - YRR E AR
AR BERR M IR B SN E
ik o

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
9,573 2,782
317 633
2,770 2,175
12,660 5,590

REREAFEFA - AEEFEBRAS
HipA 2 EERe e TP 2B EREE
BEEVRTZEFPZIEERE - A5
EEE THEo0 B 2 ERFBIEHR
AR¥ 1% 369,000 77T (2008 : 1,355,000
BIL) c AEBE2EZBURIBHE
REFENRAMERRANTHI L
HIFEUGRIE R EE M - IR RIREE
10,378,000 7T (2008 : 20,255,000
BT MEWE SIRRE B - ARy
EEERIEEANEMAEERAZL
SRIEDRTE] » B LR A BT IR Ve
1o AEE WA AZIIE RS o
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Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not EBHmMARERN K E 5 FRRRE N
impaired N
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
0 - 30 days DR 30K 1,311 5,722
31 — 60 days 31 260K 6,972 8,647
61 — 90 days 61 290K 651 1,926
Over 90 days 90K 1,444 3,960
Total A&t 10,378 20,255
The amount represents the fair value of foreign exchange forward CREFNEEFFINERBENZ R
contracts held by the Group with terms stated as follows: B - HIEEPENT
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
L F#A Riga=
As at 31 December 2009 20094 12 A31H
Sell EUR927,288 HtE 927,288 BT 27.01.2010 1 EURO: 1.50445 USD
Sell EUR1,500,000 %5 1,500,000 ELZ& 15.03.2010 1 EURO: 1.46195 USD
As at 31 December 2008 720084 12 A31 H
Sell EUR1,500,000 %5 1,500,000 B Z& 31.03.2009 1 EURO: 1.300 USD
The derivatives are measured at fair value as at the end of the PTEEANHRENRZIRANENE °
reporting period. They are used to hedge against the exchange rate ZERNRBREPRER XS ZINEE

)

fluctuation of Euro against USD. =
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

The restricted bank balances at 31 December 2009 represents
deposits placed with China Construction Bank in respect of the
Group's bills payables. The restricted bank balances carried fixed
interest rate of 1.98% per annum. The restricted bank balances
will be released upon the settlement of relevant bills payables.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry an average market interest rate of 0.1%
(2008: 1.0%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in
the foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

Euro BRZ&
RMB AR
HK dollars BT

20094 12 A31 B 2 BRHITFRITF
B B AR T R 1R LR H IS -
R FIRITF R ZH 1.98% M EEF 2
Ko EIEMRGEREEER - ZZR
HIERITIF R EERED -

BITEHEASBEASERFF S
ERAAIEASKDRIMEAZIERZE
HASRTTIE R - SRS ER
& 0.1% (2008 : 1.0%) 58 o

VAT RTT MR AT LB RIS B (ElR8
HZhBEE SN E RS RERR ©

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
1,439 684
2,563 1,606
28,520 26,364

32,522 28,654
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average
credit period obtained for trade purchases is 30 to 90 days.

Included in trade and other payables are trade and bills payables
of HK$138,074,000 (2008: HK$87,592,000). The aged analysis
of trade and bills payables at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

Less than 30 days DLR30K

31 — 60 days 31 260K

61 — 90 days 61£290K

Over 90 days 90K L

Other payables and accruals HAth R R e & A

The following amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entities.

Euro B
RMB AR
Japanese Yen =
HK dollars BT

[ENESRHEMZEEEREESHEE
FRHERIRA KSR - BHHEE
ZFHEREREIA 30 £ 90K ©

JEE 5 M EMFIBRIERNE 5508
#7138,074,000/57C(2008 : 87,592,000
BIT) - BB S FIERIRE R R
ERDHTIT -

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
88,508 40,170
22,905 26,007
21,843 17,491
4,818 3,924
138,074 87,592
155,917 175,626
293,991 263,218

VAT FER B S8R0 R B A KRS LA KA R
SEERNINEEEIAIMIE R LR o

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT

- 827
51,575 47,092
- 10,773
28,078 37,553

79,653 96,245

rr
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Capital Nation Investments Limited
Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H L F[E

EERAR AT

The above related companies are beneficially owned by Mr. Lee

Wan Keung, the controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate

holding company, Fortune Star. The amounts are unsecured, non-

interest bearing, repayable on demand and aged within 90 days.

Bank loans
Bank import loans
Bills discounted with recourse

Carrying amount repayable:
Within one year
More than one year,
but not exceeding two years
More than two years
but not more than five years
More than five years

Less: Amounts due within
one year shown under

current liabilities

Analysed as:

Secured
Unsecured

RITIER
RIT AR EER
HHEM s R R

SEERAEE ¢
JEZSKe 1 F
BE1FENBH2F
B2 FETBESF

B 5F

BV FRANRBAR

GV

BHEM
EaSivi

2009
HK$'000
FTEx
1,040
7,871

8,911

2008
HK$'000
TAT

1,170
2,961

4,131

A_EREE R R HAR B RAIEIR AR

Fortune Star ZIFR A R B oA B

4

A - BRFCAREERR - TERE

EREBMEER AKX -

2009
HK$000
FET
267,728

60,446
44,274

372,448

218,598

57,395

90,736
5,719

372,448

(218,598)

153,850

44,274
328,174

372,448

2008
HK$'000
TAT

285,229
94,846
47,028

427,103

302,303

41,184

83616

427,103

(302,303)

124,800

47,028
380,075

427,103
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As at 31 December 2009, the Group had available banking
facilities of approximately HK$837,889,000 (2008:
HK$767,663,000) of which HK$372,448,000 (2008:
HK$427,103,000) was utilised.

As at 31 December 2008, the directors of the Company, Ms. Wai
Siu Kee and Mr. Lee Man Yan has provided personal guarantee
in support of bank borrowings to the extent of HK$56,550,000
(2009: nil).

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and variable-
rate borrowings are as follows:

Fixed-rate borrowings

(all within one year) EBMER
Variable-rate borrowings A=

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings
are as follows:

Effective interest rate: BEERFIE

Fixed-rate borrowings ERMER

J4
eI
oF
pd

Variable-rate borrowings

The following amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities.

As at 31 December 2009 20094 12 A31H

As at 31 December 2008 2008 12 A31H

MR2009F 12 A31H - & &£ B 7 A
2 iR 17 18 A 1§ B ¥ 49837,889,000
77T (2008 : 767,663,000;‘%7‘1) P He
372,448,000 (2008 : 427,103,000 %

J0) ERENA ©
MR2008%F 12 A31H -

rEEEE-

BORLLRFEXRBELED AEE L

56,550,000 7T (2009 : £ ) $R1TE 3K
REEALER -
KEE 2 EBEREEERDITI
T
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
12,500 79,229
359,948 347,874
372,448 427,103
AEBERZERFEGEELLT
2009 2008
5.04% 6.13% to 6.90%

Per annum &

0.6% to 3% over

Per annum G =&

0.6% to 3% over

HIBOR or LIBOR HIBOR or LIBOR
BRRXFER BARERERK
LEGES TN GEGES I

AREEERR A AR E B BEE S BN

ZEITIERENNNT

Denominated in

EfE
usD EUR HKD
EV 287 BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
124,800 5,457 108,971
254,119 7,781 139,499
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These represent amounts payable for construction projects and
acquisition and installation of equipment for the Group's chemical
operation. The balance is repayable after one year from the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the respective
agreements. The balance repayable within one year from the end
of the reporting period is included in other payables under current
liabilities.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting year.

Accelerated

depreciation
pilIpd
BBITE
HK$'000
THTT

At 1 January 2008 F20084F K% 1A 18
Effect of a change in tax rate MEEH B
Credit to other comprehensive 5t AE A2 FEES

income

At 31 December 2008 20084 12 A31 H
Credit to profit or loss T AER
Charge to other comprehensive st AE A 2w ES

income

At 31 December 2009 20095 12 431 H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of HK$37,180,000 (2008: HK$40,883,000) available
to offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$711,000 (2008: HK$711,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining HK$36,469,000 (2008: HK$40,172,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses of
HK$29,558,000 may be carried forward indefinitely while the
remaining tax losses of HK$7,622,000 from PRC subsidiaries may
be carried forward for five years.

Hit R ARMN TR RZERR MNEE R
RRACBEMREZENTIR - IR
KA E AR —FRIZARhHE
& - R—FAREENACD 8RR
PREEMENFUET

AFEEMBEREHEEHRZ I ER
ERIAREREEREESALAT -

Revaluation
of property,
plant and
equipment Tax
L/ ER losses Total
RREEM BIREE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
6,868 (124) 6,868
(160) 7 (160)
(540) = (540)
6,168 (117) 6,168
(586) = (586)
426 = 426
6,008 117) 6,008

RMEHR - AEBEHAEHBH
ERIARRRAB RN 2 HIBEER
37,180,000 7t (2008 : 40,883,000
PEIT) o AR BLEZBIERER T 711,000
78 70(2008 : 711,000 7T ) Z B ER
BEE - BRARK R 2 mATAE
Bl & N 236,469,000 JT (2008 :
40,172,000/ 7T ) BiIEE 1B I AR 5
BEBIBEE - BIIEE1E ] SR B4
8 o F{IEET1829,558,00078 7T 7] £ R £
e MR T ARER BB AR 2B
[E518 7,622,000 B TR AJ 58 L 4F -



Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation liability has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of a PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$127,346,000 (2008:
nil) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each:

Authorised:

At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2009

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2009

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital for both

years.
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BREECI BT EEAK :

R

7200841 A1H 200812 A31H
% 200912 A31 8

BIIRBRE:

F20084 1 A 1H 2008512 A31H
K% 2009512 A31 8

Number of
ordinary shares
EERO#E

5,000,000,000

825,000,000

BIEPEARKFMBECERERL
#2008 1 A1 REIRAME A
AIEIRZREDFHMNTEIRFTEE - B
FAZN 62 B B £ | 185 [0 B B |tk 22 RE O B
B BRI E RN A R AR AR AT RE T
2RO - AR S SRR R RS
HR B3R BT B R I ATEE AR R AT i A 3t
127,346,000 7T (2008 : £#) A E R4
EFHRRET AR -

Amount
&8
HK$'000
FHT

500,000

82,500

AR Z AR TIESE ELEED -
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The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December 2001
for the purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
persons. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from adoption of such scheme and will expire on 13 December
2010.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company (the
"Directors”) may at their discretion grant options to (i) any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or (i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or consultant of the Group
or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any
director, employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser as may be determined by
the Directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company (the “Shares").

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant. The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time.
The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised) as may be determined by the Directors
(which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue of the
relevant option). Options may be granted without initial payment.
The exercise price is equal to the highest of (i) nominal value of
the Shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the grant of the
options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options.

No options were granted by the Company under the Scheme
since its adoption.

ARNRIRIE—IBER2001F12A14H
BB RER - DB ([5T
gl UREIZEEREBEAT o 5HEIK
FME10FRNBR - 2010612 H
13 BfEm °

RIS ARmEER((EFE DA
REROAEE  NEBEHEERAE
WL ARHZRBZHIBAR([BEA
A ZERES - EBEHER : (i)
X ABRARENEBBARZE
MES  BEEIEMZEA2RIER
ok (i) AN E B HB B AR 2 (EE
2 REXXREBRBEH AR H
(iv) B EZ SR TESRE 2 (HAZF
HERRERE TEREAZEART
Betn ([Bxdn 1) °

BT 2 AR AR R A AT 21
RN - BRARERT BIFTIR E 2 BB
BFTE R RNEE - AR RRER
TEHBBARREEITIRZA 2 10% °
BRIEARBE L T AR VS AN BIAR SR AL
- BRI 1218 B HRER TR
ERIA T B =R DEE - T
FHRARZI2EARMz&E—BE
BITARD .2 1% o

BREATREESETE 2B BHRE (%
HESHETERBRELE 105
A - W EEERER TITERSERA
Z R (WA)) RTTE - BB
ERBERENR BRI RE - 3
AHE N =1BH 2 SR B EATTEER
()&t ZEME ¢ (i) B R B A
2 BB A RERMY 2 ST
&+ R ERE R A #AT5 5
7 BEMR e B8 BWRERMAY T
BhKHE -

BT - AARILER IR E
B RERE -
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Minimum lease payments paid FABBMAE
under operating leases in respect MEEACETRL
of office premises during the year ZERIEREMR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FRX
In the second to fifth year inclusive JiNE)

The commitments for operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for office properties. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of two years. Rentals are based on the terms
specified in the lease agreements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future consultancy fee payments under non-cancellable
contracts which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FRX
In the second to fifth year inclusive JiNE)

2009
HK$°000
FTEx

318

2008
HK$'000
TAT

1,491

REIERR - AEE A R EHE

HZARSKIEEENS

2009
HK$'000
THEx
33

33

KAEYELAT

2008
HK$'000
TAT

304
138

442

REHENTAEEASERERAE
WEENZ S - HEZ THEBARM

F - HEMREBEEE RN IEE RN

BE -

REBEHR - AEERA TR HEENE
H

GES=Fo

2009
HK$'000
FET
598

199

797

BT ¢

2008
HK$'000
TAT

598
797

1,395
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Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated hEE BRI H
financial statements in respect of:

BEDWE K=

plant and equipment B

i Y Nmubz il EE

— the acquisition of property,

— the acquisition of land use rights

Defined benefit scheme

The Group is a member of a defined benefit scheme which was
open to qualified employees of companies under the Group. In
December 2000, all the then existing members of the defined
benefit scheme were enrolled into a MPF Scheme and their
accrued benefits for the past services under the defined benefit
scheme were frozen as at 30 November 2000. The defined
benefit scheme was closed to new employees from December
2000 onwards.

Under the defined benefit scheme, employees are entitled to
retirement benefits varying between 0 and 100% of their salary as
at 30 November 2000 multiplied by the pensionable service up
to 30 November 2000 on attainment of a retirement age of 55.
No other post-retirement benefits are provided.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out
as at 31 December 2009 by HSBC Life (International) Limited.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related
current service cost and past service cost were measured using the
projected unit credit method.

ERTREARR R A P HHREK

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TR
20,853 110,331
22,288 28,506

REMZE

REER—BATHNEAEIZKE %
TEIEAKERRIZABRERMR
2000 12 A + REFEFTEIZRZ
FrEKBEELIMASRESHE - ER
REFMZEI T BARE 2 REFMZRE
20004 11 A 30 B#RA: - REFEE
ZTEI75H 2000 6 12 AR BESHE
BhA °

RIEAREFZTE - EERFESS5R
RIR BRI » A IRER 2 iR KR F Th 48
EREMR2000F 11 A30B 2 &M 2
0% Z 100% T+ WFRLAEZE 2000 F
11 A30 B IE 2 FERHE RN S 2 RIS
& o NEBWARIRHEMBIKERT) o

STEIEE R AT IR AERE 2 &
TEE A TR iE L ASRR (B ) AR
NEIR2009F 12 A31 BEHFHE - &
TE Iz EIR(E - MBI ARG A AR
M RRIS A A Ty EE R TR G B AL %
FTE o



Defined benefit scheme (continued)
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The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Expected rate of salary increases

BRERZ
AHEIEETRHE R
HENTEHE R

The actuarial valuation shows that the market value of plan
assets at 31 December 2009 was HK$9,936,000 (2008:
HK$10,403,000) and that the actuarial value of these assets
represented 130% (2008: 121%) of the benefits that were

accrued to members.

The credit recognised in the profit or loss in respect of the defined

benefit scheme is as follows:

Interest cost B A

Expected return on plan assets SHEEETEBBR
Contributions K

Net actuarial losses RE R

Total, included in other income

BFf - CEEREMKA

FREF S ()

FriRF 2 EBHE BRI -

2009 2008

Per annum Per annum
Fx R

0% 0%

3% 4%

0% 0%

RE AR B EEN 20094 12 A
31 H Z & A 9,936,000/% 7T (2008 :
10,403,000 7T ) MZFEEZ1E
HEBDHEERTEKBEESEHE 2
130% (2008 : 121%) °

iR 2EWER AR REMNREIE
MR RN T ¢

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(398) (397)

(398) (397)
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its
defined benefit retirement benefit plan is as follows:

Present value of funded defined FRE M
benefit obligations FIEZBRE
Fair value of plan assets HEIEECATEEAE
Net actuarial losses not recognised RERZ FEHEEE
Defined benefit asset AENEEBEEE 2 FEE

Movements in the present value of the funded defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

Opening balance HvI&E A
Interest cost FIERA
Benefit paid B
Actuarial losses BEEE
Closing balance HR&E#A

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year
were as follows:

Opening balance HA N AEER
Expected return on plan assets SHEEETRIDR
Benefit paid BEAHER
Actuarial gains EE W

Closing balance HR&E A

REF S (F)

EIAGEMBRRR P ARERTE
FER B B 2 ASEPRE £ 2 B8R
LI

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
7,622 8,571
(9,936) (10,403)
(2.314) (1,832)
(1,936) (2,020)
(4,250) (3,852)

FRFENAERELST

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
8,571 7,188
(949) -

- 1,383

7,622 8,571

FRAEEEZ AR BEEBIT ¢

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
10,403 9,908
398 397
(949) =

84 98
9,936 10,403
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Debt instruments (EEa
Cash Be

The overall expected rate of return is a weighted average of the
expected retumns of the various categories of plan assets held. The
directors” assessment of the expected retum is based on historical
return trends and analysis predictions of the market for the asset
in the next twelve months.

The expected return on plan assets for the year was HK$398,000
(2008: HK$397,000).

The plan assets do not include any equity shares in the Company
or property held by the Group.

FREF S ()

AHRBEZ T EN B R BHERENER
RO

Fair value of plan assets

TEIEEZARE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
9,876 10,101
60 302
9,936 10,403

B TRAL IR 15 A 2 NRARRE
EIEETRMOIR 2 e - EFHTR
HABI$ 2 ATl TR P AT B #RAC 8% e
SHEENARR T —EA 2B -

AEFFEIE E 2 BB 4 398,000

77T (2008 : 397,000787T) °

ARBEZ A TEEYESEARRZ
BAEERAREFE 2 ME -
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The history of experience adjustments is as follows:

Present value of defined REMER

benefit obligations EAESE
Fair value of plan assets SEEEZARE
Surplus BfR
Actuarial losses (gains) on plan liabilites 512 & Ef5E E518 (Uas)
Actuarial gain on plan assets TR ERE N

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes monthly the lower of HK$1,000 or 5% of the
relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The employees of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of the
PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

REF S (F)

BIEFEERMNT

2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FAT
7,622 8,571 7,188
(9,936) (10,403) (9,908)
(2.314) (1,832) (2,720)
- 1,383 (756)
(84) (98) -
REMNKETE

AEE BB R ERHIER R —IAR
e - ZR B2 EERANKE 2 E
ENRRA - LAXFEAES - AEE
[F5RFE 2 FT 81,000 8T A BE
REHBIR A Z 5% (ARIEE REE) - M
BB 2 AR EAAR - SR A BIF
BRRIZEEHSTEBRNEE 2 EZ
BABHAFEIZKE - ZETENER
FIRILH RS 2 & T A2 L REKE
MEHBIESR - AR ARRREAET
2 BERIERIEE 2B -



The Group had significant transactions and balances with related
parties (see note 24) during the year and at the end of the

reporting period as follows:

Name of related party

RELER

Connected parties

BEAL

Capital Nation
Investments Limited

Lee and Man Manufacturing
Co. Ltd.
BXSUEBBR AT

Lee & Man Realty
Investment Limited

BEXEFARAT]

Lee & Man Paper
Manufacturing Limited
BERERAR

Annual Report 2009 F #k

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z20094 12 A31H It F[E

Relationship

B

A company
beneficially owned
by Mr. Lee Wan Keung
HFERELES
2N

A company beneficially owned
by Ms. Lee Marina Man Wai,
sister of Mr. Lee Man Yan,

a director of the Company

HARAEEENBAEZ
FNEBRLERRA AT

A company beneficially owned
by Mr. Lee Man Yan and
Mr. Lee Wan Keung

AARAESTXRLL
RFEREEERER
PN

A company
beneficially owned
by Mr. Lee Wan Keung
HFERTLEER
PN

T

Nature of transactions

RHHE

Corrugated cardboard and

carton boxes purchased
BENBRREAN
Management fee income received
ERERA

Management fee income received
BEERA
Licence fee received

BYERER

Licence fee paid

EfERES

Electricity and steam fee paid
ENBEERERE

Fuel expense paid
ERIEE

Rental expense paid
Efffe

Sales of caustic soda

HER

2009
HK$'000
TR

4,093

828

53,093

197

762

7,583

AREBEEEE A LN FRMETZER
R 5 MR EIRZ &k (HiEE24) a0

2008
HK$'000
THRT

10,280

27

87

186

843

14,930

386
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BEENHEMT2EIREN S RFA B

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows: R -
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Short-term employee benefits RHEA 8,770 7,327
Post-employment benefits RURAER 137 127
8,907 7,454

FRN BEVE BELRIELE
FEED R A144,183,000%8 T &
3,056,000 7T (2008 F : 15,026,000

During the year, purchases of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of HK$144,183,000 and HK$3,056,000 (2008:
HK$15,026,000 and HK$5,292,000), respectively, were settled

90

through transfer of deposits paid in the prior year.

The summarised financial information of the Company is as

BT 85,292,000/ 7)) BT FEMNDE
EIEEA o

ARBZAEERRALT -

follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHT
ASSETS BE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 215,147 215,147
Amount due from a subsidiary LapEENGISE S 731,750 608,192
Prepayments TERTRIE 172 172
Bank balances RITAEER 191 87
947,260 823,598
LIABILITIES BfE
Amount due to a subsidiary NN NI 163,041 280,044
Other payables L RERTR 561 788
Bank borrowings RITER 80,428 -
244,030 280,832
703,230 542,766
Capital and reserves BAR#EE
Share capital [N 82,500 82,500
Reserves (note) e (BT 620,730 460,266

703,230 542,766
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36. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

note:

Reserves
Share
premium
RDEE
HK$'000
AT
At 1 January 2008 #2008 1A 1H 20,307
Profit for the year FREF =
Dividends (note 11) BRE (T 11) =
At 31 December 2008 F2008F 12 A31H 20,307
Profit for the year FREF =
Dividends (note 11) BRE (T 11) =
At 31 December 2009 F2009F 12 A31H 20,307

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in December 2001 and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

36. FLFZMBRFER (1)

G
Contributed Accumulated
surplus profits Total
BREHS L5 il &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET THL THT
112,338 345,443 478,088
- 23,428 23,428
= (41,250 (41,250)
112,338 327,621 460,266
- 197,589 197,589
= (37,125) (37,125)
112,338 488,085 620,730

ANE 2 BHBHRTIANARER2001 F12
Rz &BEEHEMEE 2B AR BREE
SFEAMEAR N A EZ WM BT 2 RANE
(Ewd=--
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MEARBE

Lee & Man Development
Company Limited
BXERARAR

Lee & Man Chemical Limited
B THR AR

Lee & Man Company Limited
BYFTRRAR

Lee & Man Handbag
Manufacturing Company
Limited

BXFRBARIF

Place of
incorporation

B
Bt B

British Virgin
Islands
BE

British Virgin
Islands
BE

Hong Kong
5

Hong Kong
B

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid-in capital
ERTR
HERAKEE
BARA

Shares

- US$90
e

- 90T

Shares
- US$1
ren

NE

Ordinary shares
— HK$1,000,000
EER

- 1,000,000/ 7T

Non-voting
deferred shares
— HK$1,000,000

mIRERE
BEERD
-1,000,000 7T

Ordinary shares
- HK$10,000
TimAr
- 10,00087T
Non-voting
deferred shares
— HK$500,000
mIRERE
EIERR D
- 500,000 7T

RATR20085E12 A31 H K20094F 12
A1 BZEEWNBRARIZFBOT :

Attributable
equity
interest
FribfEs
2009 2008
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities *

FEEK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and sales
of handbags
BLENHEFR

Manufacture and sales
of handbags
BLENHEFR
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Name of subsidiary

MEAR BB

Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag
Company Limited
RENEBFRERAF

Lee & Man Management
Company Limited
EXERARAT

Lee & Man (International)
Investment Limited

B (EIR) KB ARAF

Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical
Limited
TEFEXLIBRAA

Guangdong Lee & Man
Chemical R&D Limited
BRI THEERAA

Place of
incorporation

B

PRC
FE

Hong Kong
5

Hong Kong
5

PRC
FE

PRC
FE

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid-in capital
ERTR
HERAEE
£ (2

2009

Paid-in capital 100%
— HK$900,000
(2008: nil)
-900,000/87C
(2008 : f&)

Ordinary shares 100%
- HK$2

EER
28

Ordinary shares 100%
— HK$100

EER
- 100/87T

Paid-in capital 100%

— US$48,750,000

(2008

US$44,903,710)
BRRA

- 48,750,000 7T

(2008 :

44,903,71037T)

Paid-in capital 100%
— US$2,020,000
(2008
US$910,000)
BRHRA
- 2,020,000% 7T
(2008 :
910,00037T)

5 The principal activities are carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Attributable

equity
interest

FribfEss

2008

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities *

FEER

Manufacture and sales
of handbags
FERHEFR

Provision of
management and
administration
services

REEE RITBRE
Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and sales
of chloromethane
products and caustic soda
FEREERRALY
R IEH

Research and development
of chemical products
L THE

TEXBIOETEREBET -
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Only Lee & Man Development Company Limited and Lee & Man
Chemical Limited are directly held by the Company.

The deferred shares of the above entities practically carry no rights
to participate in profits or surplus assets or to receive notice of or to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies
or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
retumn to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans disclosed in note 25 net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as issue of new debts.

REBXERARARNIIEEIAR
NRIHARREREA -
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A - BEERREREEMMB AR ZF
B EEREEILR
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RO ERES -
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39a.

39b.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE

Loans and receivables BRI B RIE
(including cash and (BERE X
cash equivalents) ReFAEER)

Derivative financial instruments ~ $TA&RI T &

Financial liabilities SRIBE

Financial liabilities at RHERANSREE
amortised cost

Derivative financial instuments ~ $TAE£ @ T A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, restricted bank balances, bank
balances, trade and other payables, amounts due to related
companies, bank borrowings and other long-term payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

39a. SRITE >R

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
227,055 189,800
704 =
611,524 668,467
- 508

39b. YHEREEERERBE

ARRZEF 2RI ABERK
B S REMMKIEA - BREIEITF
;o RITER  ENE S REM
OB - ENBEARFIE - R1T
B REMREENRIE - 2%
SR TAFBENAAM KRR -
ZEemIANEERREET
5 R (B e B A R @) -
FEERRRRSESRR - TX
;Y HEZESRT AEEZER
R ZER 2GR © &
BEEIERELZERR - LA
FRERA M FEES 2
i
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC and the exposure in exchange rate risks
mainly arises from fluctuations of foreign currencies,
including Euro, Japanese Yen, HK dollars and RMB
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. Material transactions and balances that are
not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant entities give rise to foreign currency exposure
as follows:

(i)  Euro-in terms of sales revenue, bank balances
and cash and bank borrowings

(i)  Japanese Yen-in terms of capital expenditure,
bank balances and cash

(i)  HK dollars and RMB-in terms of expenses, bank
balances and cash and capital expenditure.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. As HK dollars
are linked with US dollars, the Group does not have
material exchange risk on this currency pair. The
Group entered into several foreign exchange forward
contracts to partially hedge its currency risk.

39b. BIEEMSEEEEREEK (F)
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O EEER
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

Assets BE
Euro B g
RVB AR
HK dollars BT
Liabilities aE
Euro Bz
RMB ARHE
Japanese Yen =
HK dollars BT

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 5% appreciation and depreciation in the functional
currency of the relevant group entities (including
RMB, HK dollars and US dollars) against the above
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items other than those
denominated in HK dollars but held by entities whose
functional currency is US dollars because HK dollars
are linked to US dollars. The sensitivity analysis adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant group entities against the
above foreign currencies would give rise to the
following impact to profit for the year and vice versa.

39b.

M EEEE R FEREEK (8

B AR ()
O EMERE)

RBERR » AEBERE
AR BRI ERIIE
SheEMEERARE H
IREEL T

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
11,716 3,466
2,880 2,239
31,290 28,539
5,457 9,116
51,575 47,403
- 10,773
138,090 177,911

GRS

TRAAFIIAAEER
HESEERIGEER (8
BARE - BLRET)H
H E SN R BT R TR
5% Z BRAE © BRmAE
2 A B BB AEIMNER R
iR Ko 2 B TR B A SN
E R Tl g B E 1T R (A RS
RAZFEXRG5% ° SR
B o BB AINESIE
ZARBEEERE MRF
AR AINEOE R 500 2 B ED3E
THERE EHEEE
B ERL i bt
SNEEBRIA 5% BT - K%
FERMNEMTE R
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
() Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities: E#14&EER&E
Increase (decrease) on FEEFPBEN
profit for the year
-RvB —AR%
— Euro —Bi7E
— Japanese Yen —B
— HK dollars BT
Derivative financial instruments: $TA %@ T A
(Decrease) increase on () sE
profit for the year REREHNZ
— Euro — B

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risks mainly relate
to its variable rates borrowings (see note 25 for details
of these borrowings). The Group's bank balances also
have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank balances. The directors consider the Group's
exposure to fair value interest rate risk in relation to its
short term fixed-rate bank deposits is not significant
as interest bearing bank balances are within short
maturity periods.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. The directors monitor the Group's
exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

39b.

M EEEE R FEREEK ()

HiE R (8)
) EX¥EEE)
BRI DT (B)
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
2,435 2258
(278) 257
- 539
782 752
(35) 25
()  FIEEREE

REB 2R mAERR
FEBRIBITERMZ
BB (BRFBHNME

25) » MERTTAEERITTAIRTT
Fﬁ%f'b—x)&‘i@]ﬁﬁ/,\ﬁﬂﬁ
RRMERBTEE - XA
FEEFRARAEEmMEH 2
MERRIAEE AR
ZEMBIRITERIANE
HAREIE -

AEEE B AT B A S
7T'J = 2 B #O R R 0 B

o RRABEFREEN
$%.Ei¢2ﬂ:§‘ﬂ R
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings and bank balances at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout both years in the case of
instruments that have floating rates. 10 basis point
and 50 basis point increase or decrease are used by
the management for the assessment of the possible
change in interest rates of variable rate bank balances
and variable rate borrowings, respectively.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2009
would increase or decrease by HK$70,000 (2008:
HK$63,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
balances.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December
2009 would decrease or increase by HK$1,800,000
(2008: HK$1,739,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.

. MBERERE B ERBX (&)

miEEE (&)
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FIEEREE (&)

SRR

AT g5 Tﬁmi 7B
RITEBERRERR RS
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group is
also exposed to concentration of credit risk as a substantial
portion of its sales is generated from a limited number of
customers. At 31 December 2009, the top five customers
of the Group accounted for about 53% (2008: 43%) of
the Group's trade receivables. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group's liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in
cash flows. The Group also has available banking facilities
(note 25) of approximately HK$465,441,000 to meet its
short-term working capital requirements. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure
compliance with loan covenants.

39b. BIEEMSEEEEREEK (F)
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent the interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted

average On

effective ~ demand

interest ~ or0-30
rate days

mEEs  EERY

EBflE  0-30%

% HK$ 000
% Thn
As at 31 December 2009 #2009 12831R
Non-derivative financial iabilies FERIKAE
Nornterest bearing ES8E = 124584
Fived interest rate instruments TRIE 504 -
Varigble interest rate instruments g3 221 136,020
260,604
Derivative financial instruments EEHIA
- gross settlement &E
Foreign exchange forward contracts SNERSAY
= inflow A - (10,882)
- outfow it - 10423
(59)

39b. BIISESEEEEREER (E)

31-60
days

31-60%

HK$ 000
TiEL

40,137

14626

54763

REBESER ()

TRFIAEEERABENSH
2B - TRBAEEAIERE
KEFNRFAREBABOR
MIRBRERERRE - WIEFE
AREFAENSRAZENE -
R B3R S B8 BAR IR = th 4%

N
==
B o

Total
undiscounted
61-90 91-365  Over  cash Camying
days days 365days  flows amount
B2 ARR

61-90% 91-365% 365K R&iiE 48

HKFO00  HKS000  HKS00O  HK$000  HK$000
Tér TEn Thn TEr  Tén

704 50975 1676 239076 239076
- 13130 - 13130 1250
- 56987 157255 364888 359948

2704 121092 158931 617094 611524

(17,105) - - %7 (@198)
16,860 - - 20283

(215) - - (o)
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39b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

39c.

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted

average On

effective demand

interest  or0-30
rate days

MER  EERS

ERRE  0-30%

% HKS000
O T
As at 31 December 2008 #2008 128318
Non-derivative financial liabiltes HTEERAR
Norvinterest bearing EERE - 103,902
Fited inferest rate instruments TEIA 636 -
Variable interest rate instruments #ZEI8 254 192614
296,516
Derivative financial instruments fiEsBIA
- gross settlement &5
Foreign exchange forward contracts NEEHAM
~ inflow A - =
- outfow s - -

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

. foreign currency forward contracts are measured
using quoted forward exchange rates and yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates matching
maturities of the contracts.

39b.

31-60
days

M EEEE R FEREEK ()

REETER ()

Total
undiscounted

61-90 91-365  Over  cash Carrying

days

days 365days  flows amount

B8 AER

31-60% 61-90%91-365% 365X ReNE #E

HK$000
ThL

2855
2916

51,466

39c.

HK$'000
TAL

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
AT TAnL  TET  TER

16172 47110 45630 241364 241364
- 6047 - 83065 79209
- 3% 127984 352594 T8I

16172 13925 173614 677021 668467

(7189) - - (88 (7189)

76% - - 6% 769%
508 - - %8 508

ARE
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39c.

39d.

Fair value (continued)

The directors of the Group consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of the financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1
E—#&
HK$'000
FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL 122 A BEF ABR
HWERERE
Derivative financial PTESRIA

instruments -

39c.

39d.

DAE ()

EEZRR BRBEKATIALZS
B RceREENSRAR
ZRREEEE AR ERE -

R BRRRER 2 X FEE

==}

TRERZRTHERRIEAA
BEFEZEMIAZON &
AABEZA#NEED RE—

R
BE=MH o

e FRAABEFER%
EREFRBEEXBER
AEMSZ RE(REH
B)BHER-

2

OF]

s F_MAREBEAERZ
FERBE - BAFTRER
BN LEESREBRE
BHZBABE(THRAR
BRERGH(AER) HE
BEBRGH(BIBERTT
B)FHzER -

s F-BMARBEMERZ
HERHERMSLZ4E
R BEXMEEILIER
BEABEMSEESLZ
BEENBBEBARE (A
BERZBATR) -

31 December 2009
2009% 12 A 31 H

Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER E=R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHExT
704 - 704
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RESULTS
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax expenses

Profit for the period/year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Lee & Man Holding Limited 32 3 & B A R 2 7]

9 months
ended
31 December
HZ=12A
31 BIENEA
2005
HK$'000
FHET
ES
B 531,965
BRAL AR T 95,945
TSl (8,648)
F HREF 87,297
2005
HK$'000
FHT
BERERE
BERZE 561,271
BEER (86,092)
BEFEE 475,179

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLLEE

2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
689,247 784,721
112,307 118,399
(10,442) (11,963)
101,865 106,436

At 31 December

M12A31H
2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
650,922 1,016,089
(101,547) (373,217)
549,375 642,872

2008
HK$'000
TAT

1,064,177

91,600
(10,038)

81,562

2008
HK$'000
THT

1,466,490
(748,246)

718,244

2009
HK$'000
TER

1,403,428

244,311
(10,488)

233,823

2009
HK$'000
TER

1,611,920
(686,665)

925,255
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